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Dear M. Ferguson:

This letter responds to your request on behalf of the
Phar maceuti cal Manufacturers Association ("PMA') for a statenent
pursuant to the Departnent of Justice Business Review Procedure,
28 CF.R 8 50.6, of the Departnment’s present enforcenent
intentions regarding PVA's proposal to inplenent a program
whereby its menber conpanies would commit to limt their price
increases on their entire line of prescription drug products in
any cal endar year to an anount not to exceed the increase in the
Consuner Price Index ("CPI"). For reasons expl ained bel ow, the
Departnment currently intends to bring suit to challenge the
programif PMA and its nmenbers go forward with this proposal.

We understand that PMA is a trade association that
represents nore than 100 research-based pharnaceuti cal conpanies
t hat devel op, produce, and nmarket nobst of the prescription drugs
used in the United States. W further understand that PMA
menbers account for over 90% of the dollar sales of prescription
drugs in the United States and that these sales were estinated
to have been slightly over $50 billion in 1992. According to
your subm ssions, PMA has devel oped the proposed programin
response to concerns about controlling health care costs,

i ncluding the cost of prescription drugs, pending adoption, and
i npl enent ati on of conprehensive health care reform

Under PMA' s program each participati ng nenber conpany
woul d signa conmtnent to limt the annualincrease in the
"wei ght ed average of changes in the net prices"” of its



prescription drug products to a level not greater than the
increase in the CPI. New drug products would not initially be
included in the comm tment, but would be covered in the next

cal endar year following their introduction into the market.

Each participating conpany would certify to PMA, through the
conmpany’ s i ndependent accounting firm that its increase for the
previ ous year conforned to the agreenent. PMA in turn, would
certify, through its accountant, to the Secretary of Health and
Human Servi ces that the price increases of the conmpanies in the
aggregate conforned to the limt. The General accounting Ofice
woul d have the right to audit the underlying records that each
conpany would maintain to denonstrate its conpliance. 1In

addi tion, each participating conpany whose price increase in any
cal endar year exceeded the |limt would reduce its aggregate
increase in the following year to a | evel necessary to account
fully for the excess in the preceding year.

PMA has stated that this programis intended as an
"interin neasure to contain prices. The arrangenent is to end
with the adoption and inplenmentation of overall health care
reform which PMA envisions will establish a managed conpetition
system including the addition of prescription drug products to
t he standard benefit package, assunming this reformoccurs within
a reasonabl e period. According to your subm ssions, PMA al so
states that if the proposed health care reform"is not one to
whi ch the pharmaceutical industry can give its support,” then
PMA nmay abandon this program

We understandthat each PMA nmenber conpany will decide
unilaterally whether to participate in the programand is free
to withdraw at any tine. Your letter requesting a business
revi ew notes, however, that PMA "anticipates that each of its
nmenber conpanies will subscribe to this undertaking, thereby
commtting itself to the pricing policies and programstated in
t he proposed undert aking."

According to your submssions, it is contenplated that, if
PMA i npl enents this program PMA, apparently through an
i ndependent accounting firm wll establish the nechani smfor
cal culating the "wei ghted average of changes in the net prices”
of covered drugs. Participating nmenbers will agree to this
definition and will also agree to a conmon definition of new
dr ugs.

After careful consideration of the information you have
provi ded, as suppl emented by our own independent inquiries, the
Depart nent believes that the proposed programwould violate the
antitrust laws. An agreenent anong i ndependent conpetitors that
interferes with free and open price conpetition by restraining
i ndi vi dual pricing decisions is aper se violation of the
Sherman Act. Theper se rule has been applied to agreenents
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anong conpetitors that fix or set the prices at which goods or
services are sold as well as agreenents that set

price-related terns but not the specific price at which
transactions occur. Thus, the Suprene Court has held an
agreenent to elimnate free credit granted by whol esal ers

to retailers to beper se illegal even though there was

no agreement with respect to invoice prices. Catal ano

Inc. v. Target Sales, Inc, 446 U S. 643 (1980).

The Suprenme Court has al so nade clear that agreenents
that set maxi mum prices are as equally illegal as agreenents
that set mnimumprices. Arizona v. Marcopa County Medi cal
Society, 457 U. S. 332 (1982). Such maxi mum price-fixing
agreenents create the risk that the nmaxi numprices wll
beconme m ni mum or uniform prices.

The PMA proposal is an arrangenent anong conpetitors
that limts individual pricing decisions on its face. The
partici pants agree to the nmaxi mum overall price changes that
they will adopt in the future. This agreenent, |ike al
agreenents that tanper with the price structure, "cripple[s]
the freedomof traders and restrain[s] their ability to sel
in accordance with their own judgnent." Kiefer-Stewart Co.
v. Seagram & Sons 340 U. S. 211, 213 (1951). The
participants in PMA's programalso will agree on the
products to be included (the definition of "new drugs") and
t he net hodol ogy to be used in cal culating the average
wei ghted price increases each year. In view of its
structure and nature, the PVMA programfalls within the types
of agreenents that the Supreme Court has held to beer se
illegal. */

*/ This letter evaluates the PMA proposal as a whole. However

if PMA were to adopt only the part of its proposal providing for
agreement upon termnms and net hodol ogy for calculating its nenbers
price increases and on reporting and auditing procedures, we
still would have conpetitive concerns, since in this context such
agreenments would likely facilitate an agreenment on price |evels,
as originally proposed.



Wil e PMA suggests that this programis |less intrusive
and woul d be preferable to nandatory price controls,
collective private action with respect to prices is not an
acceptable alternative under the antitrust laws to
governmental policies regulating econonmc activity.
Moreover, there is no certainty that, in the absence of
PMA's program nandatory price controls would be adopted.

As your own subm ssions and other information indicate,
price conpetition in the pharnaceutical industry has been
increasing rapidly in recent years and is expected to
i ncrease further as nanaged care assunes a larger role in
providing health care. 1In that regard, we w sh to enphasi ze
that the antitrust |aws do not prohibit individual firns
from adopti ng and announcing pricing policies that are
intended to contain or limt increases in the prices of
their products. W are aware that a nunber of drug
conpani es have adopted unilateral policies designed to
respond to concerns about escal ating health care costs.
Nothing in this letter should be construed as a statenent of
the Departnent's position with respect to unilateral action
by individual nenbers of PMA or others to control price
increases in the future.

This statenent is nade in accordance with the
Departnment’ s Busi ness Review Procedure, 28 CF.R 8§ 50.6, a
copy of which is enclosed. Pursuant to its terns, your
busi ness review request and this letter will be nade
publicly available inmediately. Your supporting docunents
will be publicly available within 30 days of the date of
this letter unless you request that any part of the material
be withheld in accordance with Paragraph 10(c) of the
Busi ness Revi ew Procedure.

Si ncerely yours,

/sl

Anne K. Bi ngaman
Assi stant Attorney Genera



